
 
 

 
 

 

AGENDA FOR THE EXECUTIVE 
 

 
Date: Monday, 14 May 2018 
  
Time: 6.00 pm 
  
Venue: Collingwood Room - Civic Offices 

 
 
Executive Members: Those Members appointed at Annual Council 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 

 

1. Apologies for Absence  

2. Minutes (Pages 5 - 8) 

 To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of Executive held on 09 
April 2018. 
 

3. Executive Leader's Announcements  

4. Declarations of Interest  

 To receive any declarations of interest from members in accordance with Standing 
Orders and the Council’s Code of Conduct. 
 

5. Petitions  

6. Deputations  

 To receive any deputations, of which notice has been lodged. 
 

7. Minutes /  References from Other Committees  

 To receive any reference from the committees or panels held. 
 

Matters for Decision in Public 
 

Note: Where an urgent item of business is raised in accordance with Part 3 of the 
Constitution, it will be considered with the relevant service decisions as appropriate. 

8. Confirmation of Appointment of Members to Areas of Executive 
Responsibility  

 The Executive Leader is invited to confirm the appointment of Executive Members to 
the areas of Executive responsibility, as advised at the Annual Council meeting.  
 

9. Executive Appointments  

  
To appoint Executive Members to the following bodies for 2018/19: 
 

(i) Portchester Crematorium Joint Committee (in 2017/18, the Executive 
appointed Councillors K D Evans and Miss S M Bell) 
(N.B In the past, the Executive has not appointed ‘substitute’ members to 
this Joint Committee. However, the Executive may, if it so wishes, 
authorise other members of the Executive to act as deputies). 

 
(ii) Fareham and Gosport Building Control Members’ Panel (in 2017/18, the 

Executive appointed Councillor K D Evans). 
 

(iii) Partnership for Urban South Hampshire (PUSH) 
 

As PUSH is a formal Joint Committee, the following appointments are 
required to be made by the Executive for 2018/19: 
 

Page 2



 

 

(a) Joint Committee representatives (In 2017/18, the Borough 
Council’s representatives were: Executive Leader Councillor S D T 
Woodward and Deputy Executive Leader Councillor T M 
Cartwright, MBE) 

(b) Sub-Group Meetings (In 2017/18, the Borough Council’s 
representatives were the appropriate Executive Members (as 
relevant); and 

(c) Meetings with Key Consultees and similar Consultation Meetings 
(In 2017/18, the Borough Council’s representatives were 
Councillors S D T Woodward and T M Cartwright, MBE) 
 

(iv) CCTV Partnership (In 2017/18, the Executive appointed Councillor T M 
Cartwright, MBE); 
 

(v) Fareham and Gosport Environmental Health Partnership Panel (in 2017/18, 
the Borough Council’s representative was Councillor T M Cartwright, 
MBE): 

 
(vi) Aspect Building Communities Ltd (In 2017/18, the Executive appointed 

Councillor Mrs K Mandry); 
 

(vii) Joint Member Shared Coastal Management Board (In 2017/18 the 
Executive appointed Councillor K D Evans as the Borough Council’s 
representative and Councillor A Mandry as deputy). 

 

10. Leisure and Community  

Non-Key Decision 
 

(1) End of World War 1 Centenary Commemoration (Pages 9 - 16) 

 A report by the Head of Leisure and Corporate Services.  
 

 
P GRIMWOOD 
Chief Executive Officer 
 
www.fareham.gov.uk  
3 May 2018 

 
 
 

For further information please contact: 
Democratic Services, Civic Offices, Fareham, PO16 7AZ 

Tel: 01329 236100 
democraticservices@fareham.gov.uk  

Page 3

http://www.fareham.gov.uk/
mailto:democraticservices@fareham.gov.uk




 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Minutes of the 
Executive 

 

(to be confirmed at the next meeting) 

 
Date: Monday, 9 April 2018 
  
Venue: Collingwood Room - Civic Offices 

 
 
Present:  
 S D T Woodward, Policy and Resources (Executive Leader) 

T M Cartwright, MBE, Health and Public Protection (Deputy 
Executive Leader) 
Mrs K Mandry, Housing 
Miss S M Bell, Leisure and Community 
K D Evans, Planning and Development 
Miss T G Harper, Streetscene 

 
Also in attendance: 
 
P J Davies, For Item 10(3) 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Executive  9 April 2018 
 

 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
There were no apologies for absence given for this meeting. 
 

2. MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Executive held on 05 March 
2018 be confirmed and signed as a correct record. 
 

3. EXECUTIVE LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
Draft Local Plan 
 
The Executive Leader announced that further to his request to Officers that all 
representations made in respect of the Draft Local Plan were added to the 
Fareham Borough Council’s website, these had now been added and were 
now live on the website.   
 
The Executive Leader stated that approximately 2,500 people/organisations 
had made comments on the Draft Local Plan.  These comments had not all 
been submitted electronically and therefore he passed his thanks to Officers 
as this had taken lot of time to collate and include on the website. 
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest made at this meeting. 
 

5. PETITIONS  
 
There were no petitions submitted at this meeting.  
 

6. DEPUTATIONS  
 
There were no deputations made at this meeting.  
 

7. MINUTES /  REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES  
 
There were no references from other Committees or Panels presented at this 
meeting.  
 

8. STREETSCENE  
 
 
(1) Project Integra Action Plan 2018-21  
 
RESOLVED that the Executive approves the 2018-2021 Project Integra action 
plan as attached at Appendix A to this report.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



Executive  9 April 2018 
 
(2) Holly Hill Car Park Path  
 
RESOLVED that the Executive agrees: 
 

(a) to construct an informal path to link the car park at Holly Hill Leisure 
Centre with the existing footpath that leads to the entrance of Sarisbury 
Infant School; and  
 

(b) that the estimated cost of £6,200 to construct the path is funded from 
the Footpath Improvement capital budget.  
 

 
9. PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT  

 
 
(1) National Planning Policy Framework - Response to Government 

Consultation  
 
RESOLVED that the Executive agrees: 
 

(a) Fareham Borough Council’s overall response to recent Government 
consultations (Reference Papers A, B, C, D & E) as outlined in this 
report, along with both Appendices 1 and 2 attached to this report, 
which directly answer specific questions posed by the Government in 
Reference Papers A and E respectively, and for these to be submitted 
to the Government prior to 10 May 2018 for their consideration; 
 

(b) that the Director for Planning and Regulation be authorised to make any 
necessary minor amendments in consultation with the Executive 
member for Planning and Development to Appendices 1 and 2, prior to 
their submission to the Government’s consultation deadline (10 May 
2018), provided these do not change their overall direction, shape or 
emphasis; and  
 

(c) to write to local Members of Parliament (MPs) highlighting the 
unreasonable, unrealistic nature of the proposals and seeking their 
support for the Council’s position and write to relevant Government 
Ministers (Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local 
Government and Minister of State for Housing) to convey the Council’s 
overall opposition to the Government’s current consultation proposals.   

 
 
(2) Response to Highways England Consultation: M27 Junction 4 to 11 

Smart Motorway Scheme  
 
 
RESOLVED that the Executive approves the response to the Highways 
England consultation, as detailed in the Briefing Paper to this report.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



Executive  9 April 2018 
 

10. POLICY AND RESOURCES  
 
 
(1) Gas Servicing Maintenance and Installation Contract 2018-2023  
 
RESOLVED that the Executive approves that: 
 

(a) a contract is awarded to the contractor who submitted the most 
economically advantageous tender as detailed in Appendix A to this 
report.  

 
(b) authority be delegated to the Director of Finance and Resources, in 

consultation with the Director of Fareham Housing, to jointly approve an 
extension of the above contract by a further two years, subject to 
satisfactory performance of the contractor; and 

 
(c) the existing contract for Gas Servicing, Maintenance and Installation 

with TSG Building Services is extended for up to 6 months from its 
existing expiry date of 30th April 2018.  

 
 
(2) Business Rate Discretionary Rate Relief Policy  
 
RESOLVED that the Executive agrees to a small variation to the Business 
Rate Discretionary Relief Policy to allow relief to continue to be granted in the 
specific circumstances detailed in the report from 01 April 2018. 
 
 
(3) Affordable Housing Schemes - Progress Report  
 
At the invitation of the Executive Leader, Councillor P J Davies addressed the 
Executive on this item.  
 
RESOLVED that the Executive: 
 

(a) notes the progress on the schemes within the report; and  
 

(b) agrees that the Highlands Road scheme is transferred from the General 
Fund enabling capital programme, to the Housing Revenue Account 
capital programme 

 
 
At the conclusion of the meeting, the Executive Leader reminded everyone 
present that this was the last meeting of the Executive for this municipal year.   
 
The Executive Leader placed on record his thanks to Officers and gave his 
best wishes to Members who were seeking re-election. 
 
 

(The meeting started at 6.02 pm 
and ended at 6.54 pm). 

 
 

Page 8



 
 

Report to the Executive for Decision 
14 May 2018 

 

Portfolio: Policy and Resources 

Subject:   
End of World War I Centenary Commemoration 
Activities 

Report of: Head of Leisure and Corporate Services 

Corporate Priorities: Leisure Opportunities for Health and Fun 

  

Purpose:  
The purpose of this report is to advise members of the proposals for 
commemorating the centenary of the end of World War I later this year. 
 
 

 

Executive summary: 
A number of events, including the unveiling of a commemoration stone, took place 
in Fareham during the summer of 2014 to mark the centenary of the start of World 
War I.  
 
At the 6 November 2017 Executive, it was agreed that a decision on a proposed 
mural to commemorate the centenary of the end of World War I in 2018 would be 
deferred as there were concerns over its durability and officers were asked to 
explore alternative options.      
 
Officers have now identified two proposals as stated below: 
 

(i) Commemoration stone to be erected in the pedestrian area of West Street 
with a Civic unveiling event to take place during Autumn half-term; and  

 
(ii) Silent Soldier sculptures to be erected in five locations across the Borough 

that have a connection to World War I. 
 
There will be opportunities for residents to take part in activities linked to the 
unveiling of the commemoration stone in the town centre.  
 
 
 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 10(1)



Recommendation/Recommended Option: 
It is recommended that the Executive:  
 

(a) agrees that a Commemoration stone be erected in West Street to 
commemorate the centenary of the end of World War 1; 
 

(b) agrees that five Silent Soldier sculptures be erected across the Borough in 
the five previous CAT areas; 
 

(c) chooses one site in each of the old CAT areas, from the options presented in 
the briefing paper, to locate the Silent Soldier sculptures; and 
 

(d) agrees that the project will be funded from 2017/18 underspends to the sum 
of £10,250.  

 

 

Reason: 
In order to commemorate the centenary of the end of World War I. 

 

Cost of proposals: 
The cost of the proposals will be approximately £10,250.  This should be met from 
underspends carried forward from the previous year.  

 
Appendices: None 
 
 
Background papers: None 
  
    
Reference papers: 6 November 2017 – Report to the Executive

Page 10



 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Executive Briefing Paper 
 

Date:   14 May 2018 

Subject:   End of World War I Centenary Commemoration Activities 

Briefing by:   Head of Leisure and Corporate Services 

Portfolio:   Leisure and Community 

 

INTRODUCTION 

1. The purpose of this report is to advise Members of the proposals that are 
planned to take place to commemorate the centenary of the end of World War I 
(WWI). 

BACKGROUND 

2. A number of events, including the unveiling of a commemoration stone, took 
place in Fareham during the summer of 2014, to mark the centenary of the start 
of World War I. 

3. The war lasted from the 4 August 1914 to 11 November 1918 and it would be 
appropriate to commemorate the centenary of the end of the war this autumn.   

PROPOSALS 

4. In order to provide a fitting tribute, the following proposals are suggested to 
commemorate the centenary of the end of WWI. 

Commemoration Stone in West Street 
5. The commemoration stone would be positioned by the Tree of Life on the 

eastern end of the pedestrian area in West Street. This would provide symmetry 
with the commemoration stone by the Tree of Life on the western end of West 
Street, which was installed to mark the start the centenary of the beginning of 
the war in 2014 (see below). 

Page 11



               

     2014 Commemoration        Proposed Commemoration 
        

6. A local artist has created a design for a memorial stone approximately 1m high 
and made from polished grey granite, which is hard wearing, easy to clean and 
reasonably vandal proof.  

7. Metal poppies with red painted heads would ‘grow’ up the two front sides with a 
triangular metal inscription at the top. The drawing below gives an indication of 
what the commemoration would look like and the inscription proposed to be 
placed at the top. 

 

Page 12



8. It is proposed that the commemoration stone would be unveiled as part of a 
Civic event taking place in autumn half-term in the week commencing 22 
October.  

9. A plaque would be installed in the ground next to the commemoration stone 
noting the date that the plaque was unveiled.  

10. Hampshire Cultural Trust has expressed an interest in hosting WWI themed 
activities for the public on the day, alongside the ‘Lost Sons of Fareham’ 
photography exhibition, which was first exhibited at Holy Trinity Church in 2014 
by the Council in conjunction with a local photographer.   

The Silent Soldiers 
11. The Royal British Legion (RBL) are promoting a campaign to install the Silent 

Soldier sculptures across the country to commemorate the centenary of the 
war.  Funding raised from the purchase of the sculptures goes directly to the 
RBL.  

12. The near life-size silhouettes represent “Tommy” returning home silently at the 
end of the war, but also remember those who lost their lives and never made it 
back. 

13. The soldiers are made of lightweight metal and need to be fixed to a surface. 
They are designed for temporary use and should last approximately 2 years. 

                             

14. It is proposed that it would be a fitting tribute for one Silent Soldier to be located 
at a site with a connection to WW1 in each of the five old CAT areas; Western 
Wards, Titchfield, Crofton, Fareham Town and Portchester. This would 
commemorate the local heritage across the Borough, whilst also marking the 
sacrifice made by residents in different communities within Fareham.  Possible 
locations and connections to WW1 for each area are listed below. 

Fareham Town 

 Train Station: Many troops, including injured ones travelled through there to 
naval yards and hospital in Gosport. Permission from South Western 
Railways will need to be sought. 
 
 

Page 13

http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwj1vdev7MPaAhUBnRQKHT_tDcsQjRx6BAgAEAU&url=http://www.dorsetecho.co.uk/news/15510309._Silent_Soldiers__across_Dorset_will_commemorate_First_World_War_troops/&psig=AOvVaw2Xd9AE8mU8hCC8-8sOIDik&ust=1524141527990249
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwjpj_Xx7cPaAhVFshQKHUcIBp4QjRx6BAgAEAU&url=https://www.prometheusmedical.co.uk/blog/royal-british-legion-silent-soldier-comes-prometheus-medical-hq&psig=AOvVaw1_wWC7Dydf_6A3ve8DLQuo&ust=1524141815572560


 War Memorial at Holy Trinity Church: Unveiled in 1921 by Reverend 
Charles Lowther Arnold who lost two sons in the First World War. 
Permission from the Church will need to be sought. 

Portchester 

 Portchester Memorial Column: The memorial is located in Portchester 
Precinct and is dedicated to the people of Portchester who gave their lives 
during war.  

 Portchester Train Station: Both troops, and supplies passed through the 
station. Permission from South Western Railways will need to be sought.  

Titchfield 

 St Peter’s Church: Vicar of Titchfield, Rev. Charles Matthews, went to 
France in 1915 to serve as a chaplain and minister. Permission from the 
Church will need to be sought. 
 

 Outside Parish Rooms: A Memorial Stone is positioned outside of the 
rooms to mark local residents who gave their lives in World Wards 1 and 2. 
Permission from the hall trustees will need to be sought.  

Crofton 

 Daedalus: HM Naval Seaplane Training School, Lee-on-the-Solent (a unit of 
the Roya Naval Air Service) was opened in 1917, with the aim of training 
seaplane pilots for anti-submarine patrols. 
 

 Stubbington Green War Memorial: Erected in 1922, to commemorate 
those who died in the war. 

Western Wards 

 St Paul’s Church Sarisbury Green: The location of a WW1 and WW2 
cross of remembrance. Permission from the Church will need to be sought. 
 

 Warsash War Memorial: Located at Victory Hall, Warsash Road. 
Permission from the Hall Trustees would need to be sought.  

Projected Budget 

15. The table below outlines the projected costs for all projects within this report. 

Project Cost 

Commemorative Stone (Including plaque) £7,000 

Commemorate Event £2,000 

Silent Soldiers £1,250 

Total Cost £10,250 

 

RISK ASSESSMENT 

16. There are no significant risk considerations in relation to this report. 

 

Page 14



FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

17. The total cost of the project is £10,250 which should be met from underspends 
carried forward from the previous year. 

CONCLUSION 

18. The Council would like to provide a fitting tribute to commemorate the centenary 
of the end of World War I later in the year.  It is proposed that a commemoration 
stone is erected in the pedestrian area of West Street and unveiled at a Civic 
Event. In addition, Silent Soldier sculptures could be located in five areas 
across the Borough with a connection to WWI.   

 
 

Enquiries: 

For further information on this report please contact Lindsey Ansell, Head of Leisure 
and Corporate Services (Ext 4567) 

  

Page 15




	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	10(1) End of World War 1 Centenary Commemoration

